
REGULAR MEETING 
PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

VILLAGE HALL – 7660 COUNTY LINE ROAD  
FEBRUARY 17, 2020 

7:00PM 
 

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals hears all requests for zoning text amendments, rezoning, 
special uses, and variations and forwards recommendations to the Board of Trustees. The Commission also 
reviews all proposals to subdivide property and is charged with Village planning, including the updating of 
the Comprehensive Plan for Land Use. All Plan Commission actions are advisory and are submitted to the 
Board of Trustees for final action.  

I. ROLL CALL 

II. APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 3, 2020 MEETING MINUTES 

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Z-04-2020: 15W230 North Frontage Road (Bobak); Special Use, Variations, and 
Findings of Fact; continued from February 3, 2020  

 
 Requests a special use for a site plan and building elevation review for the purpose of erecting a 

10,000-square foot, 2-story office building with associated parking in the T-1 Transitional 
District. The request requires the following variations from the Zoning Ordinance: a principal 
building that exceeds the maximum FAR requirements; insufficient setbacks for a principal 
building on the interior side, corner side, and rear yards; a driveway which exceeds the maximum 
allowable width in a non-residential district; insufficient setbacks for a driveway from a property 
line;  an off-street loading berth in a yard adjoining a residential district that is not fully enclosed; 
a trash dumpster located partially in the side yard and nonadjacent to the rear wall of the principal 
building; an insufficient number of parking spaces for an office use; and insufficient setbacks for 
off-street parking as well as off-street parking located in the front and corner side yards of the 
subject property. 

 
B. Z-05-2020: 410 Village Center (Abboud); Special Use and Findings of Fact 

 
Requests an amended special use to accommodate an expansion of an existing “Dental Office 
with Ancillary Retail Sales” use at the subject property. 
 

C. Z-02-2020: 166 Shore Drive (Smit); Text Amendment, Special Use, and Findings of Fact 
 

Requests a text amendment to Section X.F of the Zoning Ordinance add “Accessory Building to 
a Principal Building” as a special use in the G-I General Industrial District; a text amendment to 
Section X.F of the Zoning Ordinance to establish necessary bulk, size, setback, and other such 
regulations for accessory buildings in the G-I General Industrial District, if necessary; and a 
special use as per Section X.F of the amended Zoning Ordinance to permit an “Accessory 
Building to a Principal Building” on the subject property.  



February 17, 2020 
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

 
IV. CORRESPONDENCE  
 

A.  Board Report – February 10, 2020 
 
B. Building Report – January 2020 

 
 
V. OTHER PETITIONS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
  
 A.  S-01-2020: 78 Burr Ridge Parkway (Manderscheid); Sign Variation and Findings of Fact  
 

 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
VII. FUTURE SCHEDULED MEETINGS 
 

B. March 2, 2020 
 
• Z-06-2020: Zoning Ordinance Amendments; Planned Landscaping 
 

Requests amendments to Section IV of the Zoning Ordinance regarding the installation and 
maintenance of prairie grasses, natural plantings, and other such vegetation in lieu of grass in 
yards in Residential zoning districts. 

 
B. March 16, 2020 
 
• Z-04-2020: 15W230 North Frontage Road (Bobak); Special Use, Variations, and 

Findings of Fact 
 

Legal description noted above.  
 

• Z-01-2020: 6101 County Line Road (King-Bruwaert House); PUD Amendment and 
Findings of Fact 

 
Requests an amendment to Planned Unit Development Ordinance #A-834-22-16 to accommodate 
additions to the primary buildings and site reconfiguration on the subject property.  
 
 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT 



PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 3, 2020 
I.  ROLL CALL 
The Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order at 
7:00 p.m. at the Burr Ridge Village Hall, 7660 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, Illinois by 
Chairman Trzupek.  
 
ROLL CALL was noted as follows:   
 
PRESENT: 4 – Stratis, Broline, Petrich, and Trzupek 
ABSENT: 3 – Hoch, Irwin, and Farrell 
 
Village Administrator Doug Pollock and Assistant Village Administrator Evan Walter were also 
present.   
 
II. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Petrich and SECONDED by Commissioner Stratis to 
approve the minutes of the January 20, 2020 Plan Commission meeting.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  4 – Petrich, Stratis, Broline, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 4-0. 
 
III. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Chairman Trzupek conducted the swearing in of all those wishing to speak during the public 
hearing on the agenda for the meeting.  
 
V-01-2020: Oak Creek Club Subdivision (Curelo); Variation and Findings of Fact; 
continued from January 20, 2020 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for a summation of the petition’s status. Mr. Walter said that the Plan 
Commission continued this discussion from its January 20 meeting to provide for the findings of 
fact to be further elaborated, as well as for additional consideration to provide for an alternate 
storage location for the proposed vehicle. Mr. Walter said that the findings had been further 
clarified and that staff and Ken Curelo, petitioner, had determined that the location originally 
proposed would be least impactful due to the fact that it was not visible from any unit’s front door.  
Chairman Trzupek asked for public comment. None was given. 
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
February 3, 2020 Regular Meeting 

Commissioner Petrich asked if the current snow removal contractor was still willing to mobilize 
the vehicle for the additional $500 cost of each occurrence, the cost that was mentioned during the 
previous meeting.   Mr. Curelo indicated that the current contractor would not perform the services 
unless the vehicle is stored at the subdivision. Commissioner Petrich also asked if Oak Creek has 
solicited bids from other contractors. Mr. Curelo indicated they reached out to one other contractor, 
and they were not interested in bidding the work. Commissioner Petrich clarified for the record, 
contrary to what was previously stated, that the vehicle is visible from the living area and deck of 
at least one unit, which is across from where the vehicle is stored.  Mr. Curelo indicated that the 
resident in that unit has lived there prior to and since the vehicle has been stored at that location. 
Commissioner Broline asked how many residents of Oak Creek Club were senior residents. Mr. 
Curelo said that over 75% of their residents were aged 65 and over.  
 
Commissioner Stratis said that he could support the concept of the request but wished that there 
was a better location for storage. Commissioner Stratis said that unanimity in the HOA’s Board 
was a factor in determining the appropriateness of the variation. 
Chairman Trzupek said that he could support the concept of the request due to the geographic 
nature of the subdivision as well as due to the fact that there were unique snow-clearing issues to 
the site. Chairman Trzupek asked if there were any other subdivisions that could be compared to 
Oak Creek Club in terms of layout and HOA responsibility. Mr. Walter said that only Burr Ridge 
Club was identified; Mr. Walter elaborated by saying that this was the only other subdivision to 
his knowledge that was private, had a fully-staffed guardhouse, in which the subdivision was 
responsible for plowing both roads, driveways, and walkways. Mr. Walter said that while Burr 
Ridge Club was identified on these grounds, that subdivision also had cluster driveways made of 
clay and dirt and not pavement, and a different method of snow removal was used that would not 
be used in Oak Creek Club.  
 
At 7:12pm, a MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner 
Broline to close the public hearing.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  4 – Stratis, Broline, Petrich, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 4-0. 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner Petrich to 
recommend that the Board of Trustees adopt the Findings of Fact and approve a request by Oak 
Creek Club Subdivision for a variation from Section IV.K.2 of the Zoning Ordinance to permit 
outdoor storage of one commercial vehicle and relevant attachments and implements to be used 
for snow removal on a seasonal, annual basis in a guest parking spot in the subject subdivision, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The variation shall be limited to one commercial vehicle; the commercial vehicle may vary 
in exact make and model but be no larger than a traditional “Bobcat” utility vehicle. 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
February 3, 2020 Regular Meeting 

2. The commercial vehicle shall be permitted to be stored in the designated guest parking 
area as noted within the petitioner’s submitted materials. The commercial vehicle may not 
be parked within any public or private roadway when not in use.  

3. The commercial vehicle shall be permitted to be located at the designated guest parking 
area from November 15 through April 1 on an annual basis. 
 

Commissioner Broline requested that the letter in the packet from the HOA Board be included in 
the findings of fact. There was consensus on this request.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  4 – Stratis, Petrich, Broline, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 4-0. 
 
Z-04-2020: 15W230 North Frontage Road (Bobak); Special Use, Variations, and Findings 
of Fact 
 
Prior to discussion, Commissioner Broline stated that he represented the seller of the subject 
property, and would be recusing himself from any discussion or voting on the petition. 
Commissioner Broline’s recusal was noted by the Plan Commission, and he returned to the 
audience at this time.  
 
Due to Commissioner Broline’s recusal, there were only three Commissioners present, meaning 
that a quorum was no longer present. Chairman Trzupek explained that no action could be taken, 
but because residents had attended the meeting, he wished to begin the discussion of the petition 
and receive feedback from both residents and Plan Commission.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Walter to review the public hearing request.  The petitioner is John 
Bobak, prospective purchaser of the property commonly known as 15W230 North Frontage Road. 
The petitioner is requesting a special use consisting of a site plan and building elevation review 
for the purpose of erecting a 10,000-square foot, 2-story office building with associated parking in 
the T-1 Transitional District. Accommodation of the request requires the following variations from 
the Zoning Ordinance:  
 

• A principal building that exceeds the maximum FAR requirements 
• Insufficient setbacks for a principal building on the interior side, corner side, and rear yards 
• A driveway which exceeds the maximum allowable width in a non-residential district 
• Insufficient setbacks for a driveway from a property line 
• An off-street loading berth in a yard adjoining a residential district that is not fully enclosed 
• A trash dumpster located partially in the side yard and nonadjacent to the rear wall of the 

principal building 
• An insufficient number of parking spaces for an office use 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
February 3, 2020 Regular Meeting 

• Insufficient setbacks for off-street parking as well as off-street parking located in the front 
and corner side yards of the subject property 

 
Mr. Walter explained each variation required, noting specifically that even if no variations were 
required to construct a building, the petition would still require a special use due to it being a new 
building in a T-1 Transitional District. Mr. Walter said that a previous petition for an office 
building on the subject property was approved in 2008, and staff included the parameters of said 
petition in the staff report to add context for the present petition. Mr. Walter said that the petition 
was incomplete in that the landscaping plan was incomplete and no engineering plans were 
provided, and so he stated that the petition was incomplete.  
 
Jonathan Hague, representative of the petitioner, stated that there were challenges in the size of the 
subject property, which resulted in so many variations being required to build the proposed 
building.  
 
Chairman Trzupek said that he strongly opposed the presence of a drive aisle on the north side of 
the site plan. Mr. Hague said that because a vacated alley was previously located in this area, it 
seemed like a natural area for such infrastructure. Mr. Hague noted that while semi-trucks were 
drawn on the site plan, deliveries would come via box trucks.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for public comment. 
 
Frank Mensik, 7339 Hamilton, said he lived directly adjacent to the northwest of the subject 
property and was concerned with truck traffic as well as the impacts of water runoff. Mr. Mensik 
opposed the plan as shown but felt that a small office building would be appropriate.  
 
Ken Burnett, 7339 Park, said that he felt the site was inappropriate for truck traffic and opposed 
the plan as shown. Mr. Burnett said that the roads in the area were not engineered for major truck 
traffic. 
 
Scott Madsen, 7309 Hamilton, said that he concurred with the previous statements made about the 
plan, opposing it as shown. Mr. Madsen said that the roads in the area were very narrow and had 
very little sub-base, therefore being inappropriate for truck traffic. 
 
Oscar Pederson, 7250 Elm, said that the area has a “no truck traffic” ordinance, prohibiting streets 
in the area from being used for truck traffic, thus making the plan incompatible with the area. Mr. 
Pederson said he opposed the plan as shown. 
 
Linda Bedoe, 321 79th Street, said that she opposed the plan as shown, stating that the building 
being proposed for the area did not make sense as a sound wall would eventually be built between 
the subject property and I-55. Some discussion followed regarding this topic.  
 
Holly Adkins, 7219 Hamilton, said that she opposed the plan as shown. Ms. Atkins felt that the 
lack of sidewalks in the area made pedestrian access challenging, which would be incompatible 
with further truck traffic.  



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
February 3, 2020 Regular Meeting 

Susan Pederson, 7250 Elm, said that the use being used partially as a warehouse was not 
appropriate for the area or the T-1 Transitional District. Ms. Pederson said she also opposed the 
plan because of the truck traffic that would be present if developed.  
 
Julie Mensik, 7339 Hamilton, said that she opposed the plan due to the presence of trucks on site. 
Ms. Mensik said that she was opposed to any use that would not be residential in character.  
 
Commissioner Stratis disclosed that he and Mr. Hague once shared a common client many years 
ago, but felt that the relationship did not rise to the level requiring a recusal. The Plan Commission 
concurred with Commissioner Stratis’ assertion.  
 
Commissioner Stratis asked for clarification as to proposed truck traffic on the site. Mr. Hague 
said that an error was made and he would correct the issue. Commissioner Stratis asked how the 
neighbor received legal access to their driveway, which was shown to terminate on the subject 
property. Mr. Mensik said that the driveway previously terminated into the common alley that had 
been vacated and that no access easement was ever established to permit such movement. 
Commissioner Stratis asked if there would be a service wall separating the loading dock from the 
office. Mr. Hague confirmed that such a feature would be present on any later plan. Commissioner 
Stratis asked where the driveway that exceeded the maximum width was located. Mr. Walter 
identified the driveway in the northeast corner as being too wide. Commissioner Stratis asked what 
percentage of the building was office and warehouse. Mr. Hague said that about 60% of the 
building would be office. Commissioner Stratis asked what the parking requirement would be if it 
were more specifically calculated, nothing that the staff report was the most conservative estimate. 
Mr. Walter said that the office portion would be 24 spaces, while the warehouse space depended 
on the number of employees. Mr. Walter estimated that it would likely be around 30-32 total 
spaces, not knowing the number of total employees who would be working on site. Commissioner 
Stratis concurred with this estimate. Commissioner Stratis said that the building was designed 
beautifully, but did not meet the character of the neighborhood. Commissioner Stratis said that he 
understood the design but ultimately said that the design was too much for the neighborhood. 
 
Commissioner Petrich asked where the power lines shown on the site plan would be relocated. Mr. 
Hague said that they attempted to retain the power lines on the site plan as shown. Commissioner 
Petrich said that he agreed with Commissioner Stratis’ comments and felt that the site plan was 
not feasible as shown based upon the bulk, non-transitional design, and presence of a loading dock 
facing the residential properties to the north.  
 
Chairman Trzupek concurred with Commissioners Stratis and Petrich, noting that of 10 major 
regulations comparing the 2008 and 2020 petitions, eight of the 2020 petition’s plan were less 
compliant than the 2008 petition. Chairman Trzupek said that the encouragement of trucks to the 
north of the property was a major issue with the site plan.  
 
As a quorum was not present, automatic continuation of the meeting was required. Mr. Hague 
requested that the next discussion take place on March 16, 2020. Mr. Walter said that the petition 
would appear on the February 17 agenda but only to continue the petition to March 16.  
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
February 3, 2020 Regular Meeting 

No further discussion was held on this petition.  
 
IV.  CORRESPONDENCE  
 
V. OTHER PETITIONS 
 
VII. FUTURE SCHEDULED MEETINGS 
 
A. February 17, 2020  
 
• Z-02-2020: 166 Shore Drive (Smit); Text Amendment, Special Use, and Findings 

of Fact 
 
Requests text amendment to Section X.F of the Zoning Ordinance add “Accessory 
Building to a Principal Building” as a special use in the G-I General Industrial District; a 
text amendment to Section X.F of the Zoning Ordinance to establish necessary bulk, size, 
setback, and other such regulations for accessory buildings in the G-I General Industrial 
District, if necessary; and a special use as per Section X.F of the amended Zoning 
Ordinance to permit an “Accessory Building to a Principal Building” on the subject 
property. 
 

• Z-05-2020: 410 Village Center (Hassan); Special Use and Findings of Fact 
 
Requests an amended special use to accommodate an expansion of an existing “Dental 
Office with Ancillary Retail Sales” use at the subject property. 

 
B.  March 2, 2020 
 
• Z-07-2020: Zoning Ordinance Amendments; Planned Landscaping 

 
Requests amendments to Section IV of the Zoning Ordinance regarding the installation 
and maintenance of prairie grasses, natural plantings, and other such vegetation in lieu of 
grass in yards in Residential zoning districts. 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner Broline to 
ADJOURN the meeting at 8:15p.m.  ALL MEMBERS VOTING AYE, the meeting was 
adjourned at 8:15p.m. 
 
Respectfully 
Submitted:  

  

 Evan Walter, Assistant Village Administrator  
 



 
 

 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission 
  Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
       
FROM: Evan Walter, Assistant Village Administrator 
 
DATE: February 17, 2020 
 
RE: Z-04-2020: 15W230 North Frontage Road (Bobak); Special Use, Variations, 

and Findings of Fact 
 
At the February 3, 2020, meeting of the Plan Commission, initial discussion of petition Z-04-2020 
occurred. The meeting began with four Commissioners present, thus creating a quorum, but 
Commissioner Broline recused himself during this petition due to a legitimate financial conflict, 
thus removing the quorum that was present for the balance of the meeting. Resident comments and 
Plan Commission feedback was given but no action could be taken in terms of approving, denying, 
or continuing the petition to a future date, therefore the petition was automatically continued to the 
February 17 meeting. On February 3, the petitioner and Plan Commission agreed by consensus to 
keep the petition on the February 17 agenda but continue the discussion to the March 16, 2020, 
meeting agenda. This was done for the benefit of the residents who had attended the meeting.  
 
Staff recommends that the Plan Commission continue Z-04-2020 to the March 16, 2020 meeting 
agenda.   



 
Z-05-2020: 410 Village Center Drive (Hassan); Requests an amendment to an existing special use to 
expand a Dental Office with Ancillary Retail Sales use at the subject property. 

HEARING: 
February 17, 2020 
 
TO: 
Plan Commission 
Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM:  
Evan Walter 
Assistant Village Administrator 
 
PETITIONER: 
Ramzi Hassan o/b/o First Family 
Dental 
 
PETITIONER STATUS: 
Property Owner  
 
EXISTING ZONING: 
B-2 Business PUD 
 
LAND USE PLAN: 
Recommends Mixed-Uses 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: 
Mixed-Use Center 
 
SITE AREA: 
20 Acres 
 
SUBDIVISION: 
Burr Ridge Village Center 
 
PARKING: 
Over 1,200 Spaces 
 
 

 
 

 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-05-2020: 410 Village Center Drive (Hassan); Special Use and Findings of Fact 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The petitioner is Ramzi Hassan, co-owner of the Village Center mixed-use center in downtown 
Burr Ridge. The petitioner requests an amendment to an existing special use to expand a “Dental 
Office with Ancillary Retail Sales” use at 410 Village Center Drive. The subject use, First Family 
Dental, received approval for a text amendment to add “Dental Office with Ancillary Retail Sales” 
as a special use on the first floor Building 1 of the Village Center and a special use as per the 
amendment in 2015. The original special use permitted First Family Dental to operate within a 
4,237-square foot facility at the subject property. The current petition requests a 1,266-square foot 
expansion of the subject use for a total use size of 5,503 square feet.   

Compatibility with the PUD 
In 2015, the Village approved a text amendment to the Village Center PUD to permit “Dental 
Office with Ancillary Retail Sales” as a special use on the first floor of Building 1 of the Village 
Center. The use has maintained ancillary retail sales as part of its core dentistry practice since it 
opened. The petitioner’s findings of fact state that the expansion will allow for the expansion of 
total ancillary retail sales at the subject use through its expansion of its general practice. Other 
medical uses with ancillary retail sales have been previously permitted on the first floor of the 
Village Center, such as Lenscrafters. The Village assigned four conditions to First Family Dental’s 
original special use 2015; the business has operated in compliance of these conditions since its 
opening to the best of staff’s knowledge and observation. 
The Zoning Ordinance requires six parking spaces per dentist or doctor for medical and dental 
offices. The Village Center PUD Ordinance assumes a sufficient amount of shared parking for any 
combination of uses throughout the development. In summary, the minimum required parking for 
the proposed use complies with the PUD.  

Public Comment 
No public comment was received on this petition. 

Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
The petitioner has provided Findings of Fact which may be adopted if the Plan Commission is in 
agreement with those findings. If the Plan Commission chooses to recommend an amendment to 
the PUD, staff recommends it be done subject to the following conditions: 

1. The special use shall be limited to First Family Dental in a manner consistent with the 
submitted business plan.  

2. The special use approval shall be limited to Dr. Ghassan Abboud and any related business 
partners and shall expire at such time that Dr. Abboud and his business partners no longer 
occupy the space at 410 Village Center Drive or at which time there is an assignment or 
termination of the lease for the space at 410 Village Center Drive. 

3. The special use approval shall be limited to 5,503 square feet within the tenant space 
commonly known as 410 Village Center Drive. 

Appendix 
Exhibit A – Petitioner’s Materials 
Exhibit B – Ordinance #A-834-03-15 



ewalter
Exhibit A
























“
”

”

”

”

“ ”

“ ”.

“
”

“
”

“
”

”



”



North





North





NOTICE OF  
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
This property will be the subject of a public hearing conducted by the Village of Burr Ridge Plan 
Commission as follows: 
   

Z-05-2020: 410 Village Center Drive The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of 
Appeals will hold a public hearing to consider a request by Ramzi Hassan o/b/o 
First Family Dental for an amendment to an existing special use to expand a 
Dental Office with Ancillary Retail Sales use at the subject property. 
 
The public hearing to consider this petition is scheduled for:  
 
 Date:  Monday, February 17, 2020 
 
 Time:  7:00 P.M. or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard. 
 
 Location:  Village of Burr Ridge 
    Board Room  
    7660 County Line Road 
    Burr Ridge, IL 60527 
 
Petition information is on file and available for public review online or in person at the Burr Ridge 
Village Hall. To request additional information, please contact: 
 

Evan Walter, Assistant Village Administrator 
(630) 654-8181 ext. 2010 
ewalter@burr-ridge.gov  

 
All persons interested in commenting on the proposed request will be given an opportunity to do so 
at the public hearing.  Written statements are encouraged and will be reviewed by the Plan 
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals if received at the Village Hall on or before the Wednesday 
preceding the public hearing.  

mailto:ewalter@burr-ridge.gov


VILLAGE OF

A VERY SPECIAL PLACE

7660 County Line Rd. • Burr Ridge, IL 60527
(630)654-8181 • Fax (630) 654-8269 • www.burr-ridge.gov

Gary Grasso

Mayor

Karen J. Thomas

Village Clerk

J. Douglas Pollock
Village AdministrAtoi-

January 23, 2020

Dear Property Owner:

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals hereby provides notice that a public
hearing will be conducted to consider the following petition:

1. The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals will hold a public hearing to
consider a request by Ramzi Hassan o/b/o First Family Dental for an amendment

to an existing special use to expand a Dental Office with Ancillary Retail Sales use
at the subject property. The petition number and property address is Z-05-2020:
410 Village Center Drive and the Permanent Real Estate Index Number is 18-30-
300-042.

A public hearing to consider this petition is scheduled for:

Date: Monday, February 17, 2020

Time: 7:00 P.M. or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard.

Location: Village of Burr Ridge
Board Room
7660 South County Line Road
Burr Ridge, IL 60527

Petition information is on file and available for public review online or in person at the Burr
Ridge Village Hall. To request additional information, please contact:

Evan Walter, Assistant Village Administrator
(630) 654-8181 ext. 2010
ewaLter(%burr-ridge. gov

All persons interested in commenting on the proposed request will be given an opportunity to
do so at the public hearing. Written statements are encouraged and will be reviewed by the
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals if received at the Village Hall on or before the
Wednesday preceding the public hearing.









ORDINANCE NO. A- 834- 03- 15

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PURSUANT TO THE BURR RIDGE

ZONING ORDINANCE AND THE BURR RIDGE VILLAGE CENTER PUD TO

ALLOW A DENTAL OFFICE WITH ANCILLARY RETAIL SALES

Z- 01- 2015: 410 Village Center Drive - 1ST Family Dental) 

WHEREAS, an application for a special uses for certain real

estate has been filed with the Village Clerk of the Village of

Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage Counties, Illinois, and said

application has been referred to the Plan Commission of said

Village and has been processed in accordance with the Burr Ridge

Zoning Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, said Plan Commission of this Village held a public

hearing on the question of granting said special uses on January

5, 2015 at the Burr Ridge Village Hall, at which time all persons

desiring to be heard were given the opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was

provided for said public hearing not more than 30 nor less than

15 days prior to said public hearing by publication in the

Suburban Life, a newspaper of general circulation in this

Village, there being no newspaper published in this Village; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission has made

its report on the request for a special use, including its

findings and recommendations, to this President and Board of

Trustees, and this President and Board of Trustees has duly

ewalter
Exhibit B



considered said report, findings, and recommendations. 

NOW THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the President and Board of

Trustees of the Village of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage Counties, 

Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1: All Exhibits submitted at the aforesaid public

hearing are hereby incorporated by reference. This President

and Board of Trustees find that the granting of special use

indicated herein is in the public good and in the best interests

of the Village of Burr Ridge and its residents, is consistent

with and fosters the purposes and spirit of the Burr Ridge Zoning

Ordinance as set forth in Section II thereof. 

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees, after

considering the report, findings, and recommendations of the

Plan Commission and other matters properly before it, in addition

to the findings set forth in Section 1, finds as follows: 

A. That the Petitioner for the special use for the

property located at 450 Village Center Drive, Burr

Ridge, Illinois, is 1St Family Dental ( hereinafter

Petitioner"). The Petitioner requests a special use

approval to permit a Dental Office with Ancillary
Retail Sales within the tenant space at 410 Village

Center Drive. 

B. That retail uses that depend on walk in customers have

not shown interest in the space because it is at the

far end of the shopping center and it does not have

on - street parking directly in front of the store and
fewer on - street parking places in the vicinity of the
storefront. Other spaces even within this same

building do not have the same parking limitations. 

C. That the business will include retail sales and will

attract customers to the facility that will generate



potential customers for other retail stores and

restaurants. 

Section 3: That special use approval to permit a Dental

Office with Ancillary Retail Sales within the tenant space at

410 Village Center Drive is hereby granted for the property

commonly known as 410 Village Center Drive and identified by the

Permanent Real Estate Index Numbers ( PIN) of: 18- 30- 300- 042

Section 4: That the approval of this special use is subject

to compliance with the following conditions: 

A. The special use approval shall be limited to the

petitioner and not transferable to another entity. 

B. The special use approval shall be limited to 4, 237

square feet within the tenant space commonly known
as 410 Village Center Drive. 

C. The dental office with ancillary retail sales shall
operate in substantial compliance with the plans

attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

D. That window treatments that are to be provided to

block visibility of patient exam rooms shall be
subject to staff review and approval prior to

issuance of a permit for any interior build -out of
the tenant space. 

Section 5: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and

effect from and after its passage, approval, and publication as

required by law. The Village Clerk is hereby directed and

ordered to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet form. 

0



PASSED this 26th day of January, 2015, by the Corporate

Authorities of the Village of Burr Ridge on a roll call vote as

follows: 

AYES: 4 - Trustees Manieri, Bolos, Paveza, Ruzak

NAYS: 1 - Trustee Grasso

ABSENT: 1 - Trustee Franzese

APPROVED by the President of the Village of Burr Ridge on
this 26th day of January, 2015. 

ATTEST: 

Village Clerk



IST FAMILY DENTAL

APPROVED

DATE

EXHIBIT A

REVISION 2

8 M1 1 '.    

PROJECT /: $ 01445—MEH

w,..... ' 

5' - t'` 
DRAWN BY: 4EH

We deliver success smile after smile: I DATE: 9. 18. 14

I')[ NCO. COM • 1 800. G0. 13ENC O --"--- DESM SCALE: N.T. S. 

ALL nAr6 O w02 SlccrrAnorn. S ncn[ 5

uM) oMA rsnunns d semet. wttuoK

nttc+ nwK KOA ( catzcrnn. ni

IAWM MEK1 % 
5( RIC[ i0W M SOLIYII( F[ AM1 ar B[ N[ 0 RS[ IN[ a M

OR' wrirt Alp t[ pY . O uY rH[ 

AS AlIUE1/ 12 Q SEIMCC AMt R oN11Rq` I < K
MlASC a< Mf MSpUKMS Of SCm O[ rpv nN/ 

w+ os[, waupw eu+ nor urrtn ro aamwc. 

P41Atl QOM wC AM 011( 11 wase. 5

SiRCII. VNMMIO [ EaCO 00E5 Wl II( PRYN

nuz +.< nw cvls ar acme[ wrt aFp

n+pzo Cpl : ortwlcc + m wn zo.+ o a
vovi aiowc cooca. tcnco : K

ccruu. uauots ax ura.[ Kn  
MSW464ftt fp AM0 WALE Rt4WpMC Mtt
LOCM 9040N0 LOGO, lOM1G AP llUlipa

AAo/ oA auaom uu rsxlcs a wn . w. 

0

C

Lo

n
M

rotM

v



4-- 

c

w

E
Q. 
O

N

N
D

Q
O
u
c

O

u

Q

c

O

a
a 
u

w
ce- 

cz

D
w
w



5
ILC

OL
a, 
u

c

0

U

a) 
OC



fl. 
0
u

c

0ou

W

0
0

m

Q

Z
w

Q



O

Q

O . Ln > 
n 70 Q) 

U

40k

owl

1

I Q) C
E O

3 N

d

10
01

Q

s o

70

Q) W

W

0

Ce

M

m

a
z
W

0

LLSJ
S

Q



u
u
c

0

u

v
oc



U
fia

UO
O D

O
O

3

r— N0- 

0) N
i

3

O





rsi

I -E

u

0

u

v



 
Z-02-2020: 166 Shore Drive (Smit); Requests a text amendment to Section X.F of the Zoning 
Ordinance add “Accessory Building to a Principal Building” as a special use in the G-I General 
Industrial District; a text amendment to Section X.F of the Zoning Ordinance to establish necessary 
bulk, size, setback, and other such regulations for accessory buildings in the G-I General Industrial 
District, if necessary; and a special use as per Section X.F of the amended Zoning Ordinance to 
permit an “Accessory Building to a Principal Building” on the subject property. 
HEARING: 
February 17, 2020 
 
TO: 
Plan Commission 
Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM:  
Evan Walter 
Assistant Village Administrator 
 
PETITIONER:  
Mikie Smit 
 
PETITIONER STATUS:  
Representative of Property Owner 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: 
Greg Ginger 
 
EXISTING ZONING: 
G-I General Industrial 
 
LAND USE PLAN: 
Recommends Industrial Uses 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: 
Commercial Building 
 
SITE AREA: 
1.13 Acres  
 
PARKING: 
40 Spaces 
 
SUBDIVISION: 
Hinsdale Industrial Park 

 
 

 

 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-02-2020:  166 Shore Drive (Smit); Text Amendment, Special Use, and Findings of Fact 

 
The petitioner is Mikie Smit, representative of a property owner at 166 Shore Drive. The petitioner 
requests a text amendment to Section X.F of the Zoning Ordinance add “Accessory Building to a 
Principal Building” as a special use in the G-I General Industrial District; a text amendment to 
Section X.F of the Zoning Ordinance to establish necessary bulk, size, setback, and other such 
regulations for accessory buildings in the G-I General Industrial District, if necessary; and a special 
use as per Section X.F of the amended Zoning Ordinance to permit an “Accessory Building to a 
Principal Building” on the subject property at 166 Shore Drive. The purpose of the request is to 
seek approval to build a 576-square foot accessory building in the rear yard of the subject property. 

Land Use and Site Plan 
The subject property is an approximately 49,000-square foot property located on Shore Drive in 
the Hinsdale Industrial Park. The subject property is 152 feet wide at the front lot line along Shore 
Drive; 295 feet deep on its southern interior lot line; 259 feet deep on its northern interior lot line; 
and 213 feet wide at its western rear lot line.  
The subject property is zoned G-I General Industrial, as well as all properties surrounding the 
subject property. The site plan currently contains one 14,000-square foot building acting as a flex 
office/warehouse use with a 40-space parking lot; seven spaces are located in the front yard. The 
sole tenant of the property is a company who designs and builds research laboratories; the 
minimum parking requirement for such a research-based use is two spaces for every three 
employees present at the site. The use reported having 15 employees on its Certificate of 
Occupancy issued in 2014, meaning that it must provide 10 parking spaces. Since the petition was 
received in mid-January, staff has performed routine observation of the subject property to observe 
real-world parking needs; the lot was never observed to be more than half-full during this period.  

Text Amendment Concepts 
Section IV.E of the Zoning Ordinance states that “there shall be not more than one…building on 
a lot [in the Manufacturing Districts].” An accessory building is defined by the Zoning Ordinance 
as follows: 
An accessory building, structure or use is one which: 

1. Is clearly incidental to, subordinate in purpose to, and serves the principal building or use. 
2. Is subordinate in building area, intensity of use or purpose to the principal building or 

principal use served. 
3. Contributes to the comfort, convenience or necessity of occupants of the principal building 

or principal use served. 
4. Is located on the same zoning lot as the principal building or principal use served, except 

as may be specifically provided for elsewhere in this Ordinance or by separate Ordinance. 
Accessory buildings are presently not permitted in any non-residential district in the Village. The 
following elements have been established controlling the size, height, location, and setbacks of 
accessory buildings in residential districts as conceptual comparables: 

• Number. Each lot is permitted two accessory structures at minimum, but is permitted one 
additional accessory building for every 2 acres above 5 acres in minimum property size.  

o The petition proposes to erect one accessory building on the subject property.   
• Size. There are several regulations that limit the size of accessory buildings in residential 

districts.  Primarily, these include either a maximum square footage or a percentage of the 
lot area (depending on the residential district).  Generally, the permitted size of accessory 
buildings in residential districts range from 750 square feet to 3,000 square feet.   



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-02-2020:  166 Shore Drive (Smit); Text Amendment, Special Use, and Findings of Fact 

 
• All accessory buildings in residential districts are also subject to the 30 percent maximum 

rear lot coverage for all accessory buildings and structures. 
o The rear area of the subject property is 19,000 square feet.  The existing parking lot 

covers more than 60% (approximately 12,000 square feet) of the rear area.  This is 
typical of Office and Manufacturing District properties as parking lots are required 
to be located in rear yards. 

• Height. Except for the R-1 Residential District, accessory buildings are not permitted to 
exceed 15 feet in mean height or exceed the height of the principal building.  

o The proposed accessory building is shown as 12 feet in height, as it is shown flat-
roofed. The height of the principal building is approximately 14 feet tall, and is flat-
roofed. 

• Location. Accessory buildings are required to be located in the rear yard of the principal 
building with at least a 10-foot separation between buildings. 

o The proposed accessory building is shown in the rear yard of the subject property 
and 100 feet from the principal building. 

• Setbacks. All accessory buildings must be setback at least 10 feet from all property lines. 
o The proposed accessory building is shown as being 11 feet from the rear property 

line and approximately 40 feet from the nearest side lot line.  
Other considerations regarding potential permitting of accessory buildings in Manufacturing 
Districts include the following: 

• Reduction of parking on lots. The Zoning Ordinance restricts the location of parking spaces 
to the rear yard in Manufacturing Districts. While this petition does not propose any 
reduction in the number of parking spaces, consideration should be given as to the impacts 
of co-locating accessory buildings in the only yard presently permitted to house parking 
spaces in this zoning district. The Zoning Ordinance states that all parking lots must be 
setback at least 8 feet from all property lines with permanent screening present between 
each use. If accessory buildings are given a more stringent setback requirement than this, 
such as the 10-feet-from-all-lot-lines rule, it is conceivable that accessory buildings would 
replace parking spaces on a lot. If the development of an accessory building results in a 
loss of parking, this could result in the need for a variation if the use could then not provide 
the minimum number of spaces to satisfy the minimum parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance. Thus, this is why staff has suggested that “Accessory Building” be designated 
as a special use in Manufacturing Districts rather than a permitted use in the case of 
Residential Districts. 

• Access to accessory buildings. In residential districts, vehicular access to accessory 
buildings is not always present. In the case of the G-I General Industrial District, it is much 
more likely that these buildings may store vehicles, or at least be regularly used to store 
materials that are later transported by vehicles. If amendments are desired, the Plan 
Commission may wish to consider requiring that all accessory buildings in the G-I General 
Industrial District have a concrete apron meeting the minimum specifications of 
commercial parking lot construction (Section XI.C.9.b of the Zoning Ordinance) leading 
to all exterior garage doors on an accessory building.  

Public Hearing History 
1994 – A variation was approved to build eight parking spaces in the front yard of the subject 
property. The current petitioner did not own the building during this previous petition.   

Public Comment 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-02-2020:  166 Shore Drive (Smit); Text Amendment, Special Use, and Findings of Fact 

 
No public comment was received regarding this petition.  

Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
The petitioner has provided Findings of Fact, which may be adopted if the Plan Commission is in 
agreement with those findings. If the Plan Commission desires to recommend adoption of an 
amendment to the Zoning Ordinance to add “Accessory Building to a Principal Building” as a 
special use in the G-I General Industrial District, staff recommends the following elements as 
general zoning concepts for such an amendment: 

• Accessory buildings may be approved by special use with an approved site plan and 
architectural standards review. No accessory buildings may be permitted without the 
development of a principal building. 

• Number. Each lot is permitted to erect one accessory building.   
• Size. Accessory buildings may not exceed 5% of the FAR of the entire lot or 1,000 square 

feet in total size, whichever is smaller. Accessory buildings may not exceed the size of the 
principal building on the lot.  

• Height. Accessory buildings may not exceed 15 feet in height as defined by the Zoning 
Ordinance. Accessory buildings may not exceed the height of the principal building on the 
lot. 

• Door Height. The vertical distance from the bottom of one exterior overhead door shall not 
exceed 12 feet in height; otherwise, the vertical height of all other exterior overhead doors 
shall not exceed 9 feet in height.  

o It is possible that accessory buildings, if permitted as a special use, will be used to 
store commercial vehicles indoors, a requirement that is found in the Zoning 
Ordinance. Not all industrial buildings in Burr Ridge have the logistical capability 
to keep vehicles indoors, and even then, such action will increase the insurance rate 
for building owners. An accessory building may be a more attractive alternative to 
outdoor vehicle and material storage.  

• Location. Accessory buildings may be located in the rear yard of the principal building 
with at least a 10-foot separation between buildings.  

• Setbacks. All accessory buildings must be setback at least 10 feet from all property lines. 
Accessory buildings on lots bordering residential districts must abide by the setback 
requirements set forth for principal buildings.  

• Access. All accessory buildings must be accessible via a paved apron meeting the 
minimum specifications of commercial parking lot construction (Section XI.C.9.b of the 
Zoning Ordinance) leading to all exterior garage doors on an accessory building.  

Staff requests feedback on the conceptual elements listed previously. If the Plan Commission 
desires amendments such as those listed previously, staff will return exact amendment language 
to the Plan Commission for final review.  

Appendix 
Exhibit A – Petitioner’s Materials 



 

Findings of Fact – Special Use 
Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance 

 

Address: 
 
_166 Shore Drive___________________________ 

 

As per Section XII.K.7 of the Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance, for a special use to be approved, 
the petitioner must confirm all of the following findings by providing facts supporting each finding. 

a. The use meets a public necessity or otherwise provides a service or opportunity that is not otherwise 
available within the Village and is of benefit to the Village and its residents. 

 The special use application as described would allow for an expansion of the property’s 
useful life and value while providing minimal additional bulk on the site plan. 

b. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare. 

 The accessory building will be located in the rear yard of the principal building and will 
not bring harm to anyone using or in the proximity of the premises. 

c. The special use will not be injurious to the uses and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish or impair property values 
within the neighborhood in which it is to be located. 

 The special use will not diminish the property values of any adjacent or nearby parcel. 
d. The establishment of the special use will not impeded the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district. 
 The special use will not impede development as the neighborhood is already built out. 
e. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/ or necessary facilities have been or will be 

provided. 
 Affirmed. This property is already built out.  
f. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 

minimize traffic congestion in the public streets. 
 Affirmed. No impact on the circulation of traffic will occur by the granting of this special 

use. 
g. The proposed special use is not contrary to the objectives of the Official Comprehensive Plan of 

the Village of Burr Ridge as amended. 
 Affirmed. Accessory buildings and uses are commonly found in the Village and are 

encouraged to support development without adding significant bulk.  
h. The special use shall, in other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in 

which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified pursuant to the 
recommendations of the Plan Commission or, if applicable, the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
Affirmed. The special use will work in harmony with the G-I General Industrial District 
and the Hinsdale Industrial Park.  

  
 

ewalter
Exhibit A



 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT  

FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE  

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE ZONING ORDINANCE 

 

 

Section XIII.J of the Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance requires that the Plan Commission 

determine compliance with the following findings in order to recommend a text amendment to the 

Zoning Ordinance.  The petitioner must respond to and confirm each of the following findings by 

indicating the facts supporting such findings. 

  

a. The amendment is compatible with other standards and uses of the Zoning Ordinance;  

 

b. The amendment fulfills the purpose and intent of the Zoning Ordinance; 

 

(Please transcribe or attach additional pages as necessary) 

Michelle
Typewritten Text
The proposed amendment is to allow the construction of a detached 2-car garage ina G-I district. The proposed building will adhere to the other standards of zoningordinance such as setbacks, building size, height, use, and off-street parking.see attached drawings (sheet A0-2) for details 

Michelle
Typewritten Text
The allowed uses of the subject zoning district already include warehousing, storage, andoff street parking. The proposed amendment is to allow the construction of an accessorybuilding to be used for these same uses.











VILLAGE OF

A VERY SPECIAL PLACE
7660 County Line Rd. • Burr Ridge, IL 60527

(630)654-8181 • Fax (630) 654-8269 • www.burr-ridgc.gov

Gary Grasso

Mayor

Karen J. Tliomas

Village Clerk

J. Douglas Pollock
Village Administrator

January 23, 2020

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEAmNG

Dear Property Owner:

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals hereby provides notice that a public
hearing will be conducted to consider the following petition:

1. The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals will hold a public hearing to
consider a request by Mikie Smit for text amendment to Section X.F of the Zoning

Ordinance add "Accessory Building to a Principal Building" as a special use in the
G-I General Industrial District; a text amendment to Section X.F of the Zoning

Ordinance to establish necessary bulk, size, setback, and other such regulations for
accessory buildings in the G-I General Industrial District, if necessary; and a special

use as per Section X.F of the amended Zoning Ordinance to permit an "Accessory

Building to a Principal Building" on the subject property. The petition number and
property address is Z-02-2020: 166 Shore Drive and the Permanent Real Estate
Index Number is 09-35-203-010.

A public hearing to consider this petition is scheduled for:

Date: Monday, Febmary 17, 2020

Time: 7:00 P.M. or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard.

Location: Village of Burr Ridge
Board Room
7660 South County Line Road
Burr Ridge, IL 60527

Petition information is on file and available for public review online or in person at the Burr
Ridge Village Hall. To request additional information, please contact:

Evan Walter, Assistant Village Administrator
(630) 654-8181 ext 2010
ewalter(%burr-ridge.gov

All persons interested in commenting on the proposed request will be given an opportunity to
do so at the public hearing. Written statements are encouraged and will be reviewed by the
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals if received at the Village Hall on or before the
Wednesday preceding the public hearing.



Vip Morgan Llc
970 Oaklawn Ave
Elmhurst, IL  605210000
PIN 09352050350000

Rush Truck Centers Of Il
 
Chicago, IL  605270000
PIN 09352000060000

Matlashevska, Olena
150 Shore Dr
Burr Ridge, IL  605275819
PIN 09352030090000

Bcl-Gemini Llc
450 Skokie Blvd
Northbrook, IL  605210000
PIN 09352030050000

Willowbrook 2012 Llc
50W580 N Frontage Rd
Burr Ridge, IL  605160000
PIN 09264010050000

Ccc Burr Ridge Llc
3100 Dundee Rd
Northbrook, IL  605210000
PIN 09352050400000

Guido, Marguerite M
223 W Maple St
Hinsdale, IL  605270000
PIN 09352030280000

La Salle Natl 113122
3100 Dundee Rd
Northbrook, IL  605210000
PIN 09352050380000

 
 
 ,     
PIN 09352030070000

Marine Trust & Investment
7900 Joliet Rd
Willowbrook, IL  605210000
PIN 09352010040000

Ccc Burr Ridge Llc
3100 Dundee Rd
Northbrook, IL  0
PIN 09352050300000

Village Of Burr Ridge
7660 S County Line Rd
Burr Ridge, IL  605210000
PIN 09352050060000

Randolph Properties Llc
51 Shore Dr
Burr Ridge, IL  605270000
PIN 09352050020000

Cmi Group Llc
1 Ridge Farm Rd
Burr Ridge, IL  605210000
PIN 09352040200000

Meinke, Eric
16W281 79Th St
Willowbrook, IL  605270000
PIN 09352000050000

Morgan Realty Partners
10204 Werch Dr
Woodridge, IL  605270000
PIN 09352050200000

8080 Madison Llc
3100 Dundee Rd
Northbrook, IL  605210000
PIN 09352050390000

Standard Bk & Tr 11848
16W221 Shore Ct
Burr Ridge, IL  605210000
PIN 09352040160000

Drk Real Estate Invest
19W451 Deerpath Ln
Lemont, IL  605210000
PIN 09352010030000

Sparrowhawk Chicago Ind
377 E Butterfield Rd
Lombard, IL  605210000
PIN 09352050360000

Public Storage Inc
 
Glendale, CA  605210000
PIN 09352040100000

7900 Madison Llc
3100 Dundee Rd
Northbrook, IL  605270000
PIN 09352050230000

8040 Madison Llc
3100 Dundee Rd
Northbrook, IL  605270000
PIN 09352050370000

Karlyn Bldg Jnt Venture
10204 Werch Dr
Woodridge, IL  605210000
PIN 09352030010000

Wood Creek Ii Venture Llc
10204 Werch Dr
Woodridge, IL  605210000
PIN 09352040180000

Ctltc Bv11880
10 S Lasalle St
Chicago, IL  605210000
PIN 09352050140000

Ctltc  Mbob 2929
10 S Lasalle St
Chicago, IL  605270000
PIN 09352050040000

8040 Madison Llc
3100 Dundee Rd
Northbrook, IL  605270000
PIN 09352050240000

St Of Il - Idot
2300 S Dirkson Pkwy
Springfield, IL  605270000
PIN 09352030260000

Mc Caig, Kent & Cynthia
815 79Th St
Willowbrook, IL  605270000
PIN 09352010020000



Bronson & Bratton
240 Shore Dr
Burr Ridge, IL  605210000
PIN 09352030240000

Mrs Trust
 
Mt Prospect, IL  605210000
PIN 09352040170000

Alco Sales & Service Co
6851 High Grove Blvd
Burr Ridge, IL  605270000
PIN 09352030030000

Cook Financial Llc
5600 N River Rd
Rosemont, IL  605270000
PIN 09352030140000

Packaging Design Corp
101 Shore Dr
Burr Ridge, IL  605210000
PIN 09352050030000

Ccc Burr Ridge Llc
3100 Dundee Rd
Northbrook, IL  605210000
PIN 09352050290000

Ssc Property Holdings Inc
 
Glendale, CA  605210000
PIN 09264010020000

Lewandowski, Donald
12231 S Coach Rd
Palos Hts, IL  605210000
PIN 09352030220000

Matlashevska, Olena
150 Shore Dr
Burr Ridge, IL  605275819
PIN 09352030230000

Anzilotti, Chas&Geraldine
11385 W 77Th St
Burr Ridge, IL  605210000
PIN 09352040360000

Randolph Properties Llc
51 Shore Dr
Burr Ridge, IL  605270000
PIN 09352050010000

Ginger, Betsy A
15 Deer Path Tr
Burr Ridge, IL  605270000
PIN 09352030100000

Guido, Marguerite M
223 W Maple St
Hinsdale, IL  605270000
PIN 09352030290000

Rhea, Patrick
1122 Timber Trails Rd
Downers Grove, IL  605270000
PIN 09264010010000

Ssc Property Holdings Inc
 
Glendale, CA  605210000
PIN 09352020010000

Cook Financial Llc
5600 N River Rd
Rosemont, IL  605270000
PIN 09352050050000

Lm Burr Ridge Holdings
20 Danada Sq W
Wheaton, IL  605275830
PIN 09352040110000

L C & F Enterpries Inc
20 Willow Bay Dr
S Barrington, IL  605270000
PIN 09352040190000

M.T. Real Estate Holdings
136 Shore Dr
Burr Ridge, IL  605270000
PIN 09352030080000

Zbp
4 S Washington Cir
Hinsdale, IL  605210000
PIN 09352050080000

Bcl-Gemini Llc
450 Skokie Blvd
Northbrook, IL  605210000
PIN 09352030040000

Ccc Burr Ridge Llc
3100 Dundee Rd
Northbrook, IL  605270000
PIN 09352050270000

Watson, Linda S
1426 Gunderson Ave
Berwyn, IL  605270000
PIN 09352040090000

Meaden, Thomas
16W210 83Rd St
Burr Ridge, IL  605270000
PIN 09352040210000

Bronson & Bratton Inc
220 Shore Dr
Burr Ridge, IL  605210000
PIN 09352030170000

Complete Supply Inc
16W281 79Th St
Hinsdale, IL  605210000
PIN 09352010010000

Ccc Burr Ridge Llc
3100 Dundee Rd
Northbrook, IL  605270000
PIN 09352050280000

Layko Properties
100 Shore Dr
Burr Ridge, IL  605210000
PIN 09352030060000





 

 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
 

PETITION FOR PUBLIC HEARING 
PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF 

APPEALS 
 

 
 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION (to be completed by Petitioner) 
 
PETITIONER (All correspondence will be directed to the Petitioner): _____________________________________________ 
 
STATUS OF PETITIONER: _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PETITIONER'S ADRESS: _________________________________________________________________________________         
 
ADDRESS OF SUBJECT PROPERTY: ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
PHONE: _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                       
EMAIL: ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: ____________________________________________________________________________________                            
 
PROPERTY OWNER'S ADDRESS: ________________________________ PHONE: _________________________________ 

 
PUBLIC HEARING REQUESTED:    _____ Special Use       _____ Rezoning     _____ Text Amendment     _____ Variation(s) 
 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
  
 

 PROPERTY INFORMATION (to be completed by Village staff) 
 
PROPERTY ACREAGE/SQ FOOTAGE: ___________________________ EXISTING ZONING: ____________________________                                                     
 
EXISTING USE/IMPROVEMENTS: ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBDIVISION: _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                              
PIN(S) #_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

  
The above information and the attached Plat of Survey are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge.  I understand the information 
contained in this petition will be used in preparation of a legal notice for public hearing.  I acknowledge that I will be held responsible 
for any costs made necessary by an error in this petition. 
 
 
 
 __ 
 Petitioner’s Signature                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             Date of Filing 

 
 

Michelle
Typewritten Text
Mikie Smit

Michelle
Typewritten Text
Licensed Architect

Michelle
Typewritten Text
3835 Arthur Ave  Brookfield IL 60513

Michelle
Typewritten Text
166 Shore Dr.  Burr Ridge, IL  60527

Michelle
Typewritten Text
Greg Ginger

Michelle
Typewritten Text
312.373.0360

Michelle
Typewritten Text
mikie@sundriftdesign.com

Michelle
Typewritten Text
X

Michelle
Typewritten Text
requesting a text amendment to allow construction of an accessory building on an

Michelle
Typewritten Text
existing G-I zoned lot. Proposed accessory building to be a detached 2 car garage

Michelle
Typewritten Text
no change to lot use or parking, structure to comply with all other area / setback requirements

Michelle
Typewritten Text
49,728 sf

Michelle
Typewritten Text
G-I

Michelle
Typewritten Text
office/ warehouse building

Michelle
Typewritten Text
0935203010

Michelle
Mikie

Michelle
Typewritten Text
01.19.2020

Michelle
Typewritten Text



 
 

 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
PLAN COMMISSION AND  

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 

Consent to Install Public Notice Sign 

 

 
 
The owner of the property referenced below, or an authorized representative 

of the owner, which is the subject of a public hearing before the Village of 

Burr Ridge Plan Commission or Zoning Board of Appeals, hereby consents to 

allow the Village of Burr Ridge to install a public notice sign on the aforesaid 

property.  The public notice sign will be erected 15 to 30 days prior to the 

public hearing and will remain on the property until it is removed by the 

Village of Burr Ridge subsequent to a final dispensation of petition request.  

 
 
 
Street Address of Subject Property: 

 

 
 
Property Owner or Petitioner:  

 

 
 

(Print Name) 
 
 
 

 
 
 

(Signature) 

  

 

Michelle
Typewritten Text
166 Shore dr. Burr Ridge, IL 60527

Michelle
Typewritten Text
Mikie Smit

Michelle
Mikie



 
 

 

 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission 
  Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM: Evan Walter, Assistant Village Administrator 
 
DATE: February 17, 2020 
 
RE:  Board Report 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

At its February 10, 2020 meeting, the following actions were taken by the Board of Trustees 
relative to matters forwarded from the Plan Commission.  

V-01-2020: Oak Creek Club Subdivision (Curelo); The Board of Trustees directed staff to 
prepare an ordinance approving a variation from Section IV.K.2 of the Zoning Ordinance to permit 
outdoor storage of one commercial vehicle and relevant attachments and implements to be used 
for snow removal on a seasonal, annual basis in a guest parking spot in the subject subdivision. 
The Board instructed that the ordinance include all conditions prescribed in the Plan Commission’s 
recommendation.  

 



02/12/2020

Permit Number Date Applied Property Address

Permits Applied For January 2020

Applicant Name & Contact Info Description

0113012020 582 Village Center Dr Bergmeyer Associates, Inc.

0l/2712020 16W 361 South Frontage RD LM Custom Homes LLC

0112712020 6880 North Frontage Rd Klein Construction

0l/2712020 7020 High Grove Blvd The Mx Group

JCMSC-20-OO8 0v2012020 8500 Madison St Tuthill Corp

JDEK-20-004 0rlt3/2020 l0S 560 Oak Hill CT SG Home Builders

JDEK-20-005 01115/2020 167 Pheasant Hollow DR CEW Construction

JPR-19-337 01102/2020 ROWs DuPage Locations Ledcor Technical Services

JCA-19-224

JCA-19-315

JCA-20-010

JCA-20-011

JRAL-19-324

JRAL-20-001

JRAL-20-002

JRAL-20-003

JRAL-20-006

JRAL-20-009

JRSF-19-327

01130/2020

0Ur0/2020

0U06/2020

01107t2020

0U17t2020

0U23/2020

0U24/2020

3l Stonehenge Ct

ROWs DuPage Locations

ROWs DuPage Locations

ROWs DuPage Locations

11617 Briarwood Ln

ROWs Ck Cty Locations

7245 Lakeside Cir

Lamantia Design & Constructi

PirTano Construction Co.

Directional Construction Servic

Always Underground Inc.

Sweet Homes Decorating Inc.

Talon Communications

McNaughton Development

51 Sleeper St.
Boston MA022l0
361 S. Frontage Rd.
Burr tudge lL 60527

15700 w. 103rd St.
Lemont IL 60439

7020High Grove Blvd
Burr Ridge IL 60527

8500 Madison St
Burr Ridge lL 60521

1800 Wedgewood Ln.
Schaumburg IL 60193

260 Saint Andrews Dr
Bolingbrook lL 60440

20 E. Ogden Av
Hinsdale lL 60521

1766 Armitage Ct.
Addison IL 60101

440 S Dartmoor Dr
Crystal Lake IL 60014

17644 Morse St
Lowell IN 46356

Algonquin IL 60102

305 Amston Ct.
Oswego lL 60543

I 15220 Jackson St. Ste l0l
Bun Ridge lL 60527

Com Alteration

Com Alteration

Com Alteration

Com Alteration

Commercial Miscellaneous

Deck

Deck

Right-of-Way

Residential Alteration

Right-of-Way

Right-of-Way

Right-of-Way

Residential Alteration

Right-of-Way

TOTAL: 15

Residential New Single Family



a2/72/2020

Permit Number Date Issued Property Address

Permits Issued January 2020

Applicant Name & Contact Info Description

Value & Sq Ftg

JCA-19-315

lcA-19-332

lcPE-19-326

IDEK-19-329

JDEK-20-004

JDS-19-333

JPR-19-265

JPR-19-337

JRAL-19-324

JRAL-20-001

JRAL-20-002

JRES-19-317

JRSF-19-327

JRSF-19-328

0l/1312020 16W 361 South Frontage R LM Custom Homes LLC

0113112020 6800 North Frontage Rd. Pinnacle Contractors, LLC

0110912020 l5W 460 North Frontage R Electric guard dog

0102t2020 15W I 16 79TH ST Hursthouse, Inc.

0U27t2020 l0S 560 Oak Hill CT SG Home Builders

0112312020 9381 Fallingwater Dr W Pool Busters LLC

0111012020 ROWs Ck Cty Locations AT&T

0110212020 ROWs DuPage Locations Ledcor Technical Services

Lamantia Design & Constructi

PirTano Construction Co.

Directional Construction Servic

Tesla,Inc

McNaughton Development

McNaughton Development

361 S. Frontage Rd.

Burr Ridge lL 60527

537 S. Vermont
Palatine IL 60067

550 Assembly Street

Columbia SC2920l
751 N Bolingbrook Dr,

Bolingbrook lL 60440

1800 Wedgewood Ln.
Schaumburg IL 60193

1201 Laura Lane

Lake Bluff IL 60044

1000 Commerce Dr.
Oak Brook lL 60523

20 E. Ogden Av
Hinsdale lL 60521

1766 Armitage Ct.

Addison IL 60101

440 S Dartmoor Dr
Crystal Lake IL 60014

2201 Arthur Avenue
Elk Grove Village IL 60007

I 15220 Jackson St. Ste 101

Burr Ridge lL 60527

I 15220 Jackson St.

Burr Ridge lL 60527

Com Alteration
$282,262 3,213

Com Alteration
$324,012

Com Electrical Permit

s31,280

Deck

Deck

$4,000

Demolition Structure

Right-of-Way
sl
Rightof-Way

Residential Alteration

$85,000 361

Right-of-Way

Right-of-Way
s 1,418

Residential Miscellaneous

Residential New Single Family
$366,300 2,442

Residential New Single Family
s366,300 2,442

0l/0312020 31 Stonehenge Ct

01128/2020 ROWs DuPage Locations

0111412020 6726 Fieldstone Dr

0111712020 7245 Lakeside Cir

TOTAL: 14

0,72012020 7233 Lakeside Cir

0111012020 ROWs DuPage Locations



Occupancy Certificates Issued January 2020
02112120

co# CertificateofOccupancyDate OccupantofRecord Address

oF2000l

oF20005

oF20002

0y03t20
01110120

01/14/20

Vine Academy

Centene Illinicare

Olusegun & Mobolaji E. Adefioye

6880 North Frontage Rd

1333 Burr Ridge Pkwy

8310 Waterview CT



CONSTRUCTION VATUE OF BUILDING PERMITS - MONTHLY SURVEY 2O2O
(Does not include miscellaneous Permitsl

MONTH

SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENTIAL
(NEw)

ADDITIONS

ALTERATIONS
(RES)

NON.
RESIDENTIAT
(NEw)

ADDITIONS

ALTERATIONS
(NON-RES)

TOTAI. FOR

MONTH

IANUARY S732,600 S8s,000 5606,274
I2l t1l t2l

FEBRUARY 5o

MARCH so

APRIL so

so

JUNE So

I ULY 5o

AUGUST So

SEPTEMBER So

OCTOBER $o

NOVEMBER so

DECEMBER so

2020 TOTAT. S732,600 SE5,ooo So $606,274 $1,42t,E74
12) t1l 12)

5L,423,874



Village of Burr Ridge New Housing Permits zOLg Compared to 2O2O

45

40

35

30

25

20

Jan

s 2019 3 2 I 2 2 0

.2020 2 0

2 1 3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

15

10

5

0

2 221

0

3

0



350

340

320

300

280

260

240

220

200

180

150

740

120

100

80

60

40

20

0

r 2019

2020

Village of Burr Ridge Building Permits lssued 2(J19 Gompared to 2O2O

rrtrllltll I
Jan

2L

t4

r
9

0

13

0

49

0

31

0

30

0

32

0

42

0

30

0

2L

0

25

0

10

0

I
313

14



02/12/2020 08:39 AM

Breakdown of Projects by Project Type

Permits lssued January 2020

Residential New Single Family
2 (1s%)

Residential Miscellarnors
1 (8%)

Resi dential Alteration
1 (8%)

Permits Issued January 2020

Com Electrical Permit
1 (806)

Right-of-Way
.r (31%)

"-'.,... Com Alteration
2 (1s%)

S Com Alteration

! Com BectricalPermit

I o"*
! Rcsidrntial Alteration

! RcsidenUal Miscellanors

! Residcntial New$nglc Family

! nisht-of-way

Deck
2 (15o/o)

a

Page 1 of 1



 
S-01-2020: 78 Burr Ridge Parkway (Manderscheid); Requests a variation approval from the County 
Line Square sign plan to permit a third wall sign with alternative design features and a conditional 
sign approval to approve a sign with more than three colors at the subject property.  
HEARING:  
February 10, 2020 
 
TO: 
Plan Commission 
Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM:  
Evan Walter 
Assistant Village Administrator 
 
PETITIONER: 
John Manderscheid 
 
PETITIONER STATUS: 
Current Tenant 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: 
Reegs Properties, LP 
 
EXISTING ZONING:  
B-1 Business  
 
LAND USE PLAN:  
Recommends Commercial Retail 
and Restaurant Uses 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: 
Commercial Building 
 
SITE AREA: 
10 Acres 
 
SUBDIVISION: 
County Line Square 
 

 

 

 



Staff Report and Summary 
S-01-2020:  78 Burr Ridge Parkway (Manderscheid); Sign Variation, Conditional Sign 
Approval, and Findings of Fact 
 
The petitioner is John Manderscheid, owner of Patti’s Sunrise Café located at 78 Burr Ridge 
Parkway within the County Line Square shopping center. The petitioner requests a variation 
approval from the County Line Square sign plan to permit a third wall sign with alternative design 
features and a conditional sign approval to approve a sign with more than three colors at the subject 
property. The County Line Square sign plan was established in 1988 to provide a property-specific 
set of sign regulations for the shopping center, as County Line Square was a first-of-its-kind retail 
location in the Village at the time of its development in the late 1980s. In summary, each store is 
permitted to have one sign per wall of its demised premises; if tenants have more than one side, 
the property owner is permitted to administratively approve additional signs based on the number 
of walls at the subject property. Signs are required to be colored #313 Duranodic Bronze and be 
no more than 16’ in length and 18” in height, and may only contain a trade name of the subject 
business. Complete regulations of the County Line Square sign plan have been provided in the 
packet.  
Patti’s Sunrise Café currently has two permitted wall signs on its demised premises based upon its 
having two frontage walls; the petitioner is requesting to erect a third sign on a brick pole in the 
front of the property. The petitioner states that the purpose of the variation is due to the presence 
of the brick pole near the subject property, which blocks some of the view of the business’ 
storefront. The additional sign would be 12 square feet in size and be approximately 8 feet in 
height; have a field colored #313 Duranodic Bronze to match the shopping center’s existing signs; 
with black print and a small colored picture of a sun. Because the sign has more than three colors, 
it requires a conditional sign approval as well as a variation to approve.  

Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
The petitioner has provided findings of fact, which may be adopted if the Plan Commission is in 
agreement with those findings. If the Plan Commission chooses to recommend conditional sign 
approval and a variation, the recommendation should be made subject to the elevations and sign 
location submitted by the petitioner. 

Appendix 
Exhibit A – Petitioner’s Materials 



 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

FOR A VARIATION PURSUNT TO THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
SIGN ORDINANCE 

 
 

 
 

The Plan Commission’s recommendation to approve or deny a Sign Variation request is 
determined by the following standards (as per section 55.39 of the Burr Ridge Sign 
Ordinance). The applicant must provide a response to each of the following findings by 
indicating the facts supporting such findings.  
 

a) The variation is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Sign Ordinance. 
 

The sign is in harmony with the surrounding tenants. The background color of 
the sign matches the facade of the building. Since the sign is mounted to the 
existing structure, it does take away from the look of the building.  

 
 
 

b) The plight of the petitioner is due to unique circumstances. 
 

Most people enter the shopping center through the center entrance facing 
Brookhaven. As you stand in front of Brookhaven, there is no possible way you 
can see Patti's; the pillars that are in front of Patti's prevent anyone from seeing 
the restaurant. Just in the last week, people came into the restaurant, and said 
they did not even know we were in the center.   

 
 
 

c) The variation is necessitated by practical difficulties or particular hardships created by 
the requirements of the Sign Ordinance; 

 
 

The reason for the sign being placed on the pillar is two-fold. First, a sign attached 
to front of the building is blocked by the awning of the adjacent store. Second, a 
logo put on Patti's awning is blocked by the pillar that the proposed sign would be 
located. 

 
 

d) The variation will not alter the essential character of the locality 
 
 

The proposed sign is tastefully designed and will attract people to the end of the 
center. We believe it will help to enhance the look of the property. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

ewalter
Exhibit A



 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

FOR CONDITIONAL SIGN APPROVAL PURSUNT TO THE 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE SIGN ORDINANCE 

 
 

 
 

The Plan Commission’s recommendation to approve or deny a Sign Variation request is 
determined by the following standards (as per section 55.41 of the Burr Ridge Sign 
Ordinance). The applicant must provide a response to each of the following findings by 
indicating the facts supporting such findings.  
 

a) The conditional sign request is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the 
Sign Ordinance. 

 
The conditional sign matches the design elements of the existing shopping center in 
color, size, and intent. 

 
 
 
 
 

b) The sign will not adversely impact or be a detriment to the surrounding area. 
 

The sign will draw additional visitors to the shopping center by making one of the 
larger restaurants more visible.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c) The sign will be in character with the site design and building architecture of the 
property on which it is located. 

 
The sign will be small in size as well as match other signs in the area.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

d) The variation will not alter the essential character of the locality. 
 

The sign will not alter the essential character of the locality.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 











VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE
PETITION FOR PUBLIC HEARING

PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS

GENERAL INFORMATION (to be completed by Petitioner)

PETITIONER (All correspondence will be directed to the Petitioner): - iol~\^ U Pr^ D ^&c; \^-^L_ l0

STATUS OF PETITIONER~\ R̂c^p_^^^ 4 •^vJ ^ 1'=^ v0 ^~

PETITIONER'S ADRESS: ^\ S' ~%UL^v^ ^\<7(^-&'3Y:^-^^0^

ADDRESS OF SUBJECT PROPERTY:

PHONE: t^-S 0 - % ^ S~- ^^^>\

EMAIL: ^<&^^<^Q- Vp^-^vss\_A>^ \^v^ €- c^^-^t COVA

PROPERTY OWNER: ~~S^^s> G-^^e^^-

PROPERTY OWNER'S ADDRESS: U$ V(A(/ <?h'«'+ PHONE: (^°) ^2-<^' ^(ff{2—

PUBLIC HEARING REQUESTED: _ Special Use _ Rezoning _ Text Amendment Variation (s)

--<\u^^^

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST:

"T-0 ^>S^ ^^-?\£>^ ^^-<0 <?v^

s>\^s ^ ^ ^ C^^s£<Z-Y

PROPERTY INFORMATION (to be completed by Village staff)

PROPERTY ACREAGE/SQ FOOTAGE:_]U_~_L^VC^ EXISTING ZONING: 1 S "~-t- OL'<^<-^

EXISTING USE/IMPROVEMENTS:

SUBDIVISION:

PIN(S) #_

^^p^\ a
^A(_ ^^^16

18'" ^o-^o^- o^-oooQ

^1

The above information and the attached Plat of Survey are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I understand the information
contained in this petition will be used in preparation of a legal notice for public hearing. I acknowledge that I will be held responsible

for any costs made necessary by an error in this petition.

^\S~\^Q
Date of Filing



ewalter
Exhibit B






	I. AGENDA
	II. MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 3, 2020
	III. Z-04-2020: 15W230 N FRONTAGE ROAD (BOBAK)
	IV. Z-05-2020: 410 VILLAGE CENTER DRIVE (HASSAN)
	V. Z-02-2020: 166 SHORE DRIVE (SMIT)
	VI. CORRESPONDENCE
	VII. S-01-2020: 78 BURR RIDGE PARKWAY (MANDERSCHEID)



